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1. We request that questions submitted be answered as soon as possible prior to April 4th as stated in the 
RFP. Our request is driven due to the short response timeframe before the close date.  It will be difficult 
to provide a quality response to this RFP with only 4 days to adjust our response if required. 

ANSWER: We will make every attempt to answer and post the questions as we get them, 
however, all questions will be answered and posted NO later than April 4, 2016. 

 
2. Has a budget been set aside and approved for this project?  

a. If so, what is this budget?  
ANSWER: Yes, a budget estimate has been set.  We are not disclosing the budgeted amount. 

 
3. We see an expected project completion date? 

ANSWER: Yes, we have a projected completion date, but understand that each vendor’s 
timeline will vary and are looking to the vendor to provide a preliminary timeline. 

 
4. How will the financial portion of the response be assessed? Will a scoring matrix be provided? 

ANSWER: The financial portion will not be scored.  Please refer to Section 7.2.1 Cost Estimate in 
the RFP for details on the process. 

 
5. Based on the depth of the requested response required as outlined in the RFP we are requesting an 

extension to the close until April 22, 2016 in order to provide the best response possible. 
ANSWER:  The deadline to submit has been revised to April 15, 2016 on or before 5:00 p.m. 

 
6. You reference the need for experience in Six Sigma methodology. What is the rationale for this as it is not 

a software development methodology. 
ANSWER: We do not require “experience,” we want respondents to use the assignment matrix 
to describe their roles and responsibilities:  “Describe your roles and responsibilities using the 
Six-Sigma RACI (Responsible Accountable Consulted Informed) assignment matrix.” 

 
7. If a response includes a group of firms (services & software) with a prime/lead firm can the project 

references be from any of the firms included in the bid? 
ANSWER: Yes. 

 
8. Did any firm assist you in preparing this RFP? If so, are they precluded from bidding on this RPF? 

ANSWER: No, no firm assisted us in preparing this RFP. 
 

9. Although we have the size, how many documents need to be migrated from FileNet P8?  
ANSWER: Approximately, 600,000. 

 
10. Would the district rather keep files on the File Share and perform records management in place, or 

migrate those documents to SharePoint?  
ANSWER: Migrate to SharePoint. 

 
11. If File Share migration is also required, how many documents need to be migrated?  

ANSWER: ~7TB; exact number of files is unknown. 
 

12. Would the district rather keep messages in Microsoft Exchange (Outlook) and perform records 
management in place, or send those message to SharePoint?  

ANSWER: Microsoft Exchange (Outlook) migration or management is not a requirement in this 
RFP. 

 
13. Will taxonomy design for SharePoint be required?  

ANSWER: Yes. This is considered part of the Scope of Services, Section 4 d & e. 
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14. Are the records management features in SharePoint 2013 already being used?  

ANSWER: No. 
 

15. Are any 3rd party tools for Records Management already being used?  If so, how are they being used, and 
will they continue being used?  

ANSWER: No. 
 

16. Is there any Remote Blob Storage already being used in SharePoint 2013?  If so, which one?  
ANSWER: No. 

 
17. Clarification on Question F.05.  Is the district wanting to rendition documents to an archive format (such 

as PDF/A), or for a viewer that can view formats that are already obsolete?  
ANSWER: Both. 

 
18. Also, on Question F.05, can you specify which file formats you are most interested in?  

ANSWER: Office; AutoCAD; Adobe. 
 

19. What is the anticipated growth over the next few years in number of users?   
ANSWER: We do not anticipate a large amount of growth in users. 

 
20. How much data do you anticipate adding in the next 1-3 years?   

ANSWER: Between 1/1/2013 and 12/31/2015 48,287 documents were added to the FileNet 
system (~46.6GB). If that trend continues, it could be assumed that ~15-17GB per year would be 
added to the new SharePoint Records Center. 

 
21. How much data did you add last year?   

ANSWER: In 2015 16,427 documents were added to the FileNet system (~12.3GB). 
 

22. Do you expect additional scope of services that you provide to result in an expansion of content size or 
number of users to spike? 

ANSWER: Yes, more users will at the very least be using the SharePoint Records Center. It is 
reasonable to expect that ultimately more staff will also begin using SharePoint for 
collaboration as well. 

 
23. Must all users (450) have records management access?  If not how many approximately? 

ANSWER: Approximately 5-8 people will need records management administrative access. All 
450 users will need view and upload access to the SharePoint Records Center. 

 
24. Regarding the migration from FileNet to SharePoint 2013 Records Center. Will you also need to migrate 

files from existing SharePoint or other document repositories? 
ANSWER: Yes, but it’s likely that staff will get started with the Consultant and finish as time 
permits. 

 
25. Will you require document management space in SharePoint 2013 or will you continue to use other 

repositories such as FileNet?  
ANSWER: FileNet will be discontinued after migration.  

 
26. Do you have a significant number of large files such as hi res images or videos? If so approximately how 

much space and # of files? 
ANSWER: We currently do not have any files in FileNet over 2GB. 
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27. Have you reviewed any other Records Management product add-ons? If so, what are they? 
ANSWER: On a separate and distinct project the Districts were given demonstrations on 
Knowledgelake and Collabware.  Gimmal also provided a demo in the early proceedings of the 
current effort. 

 
28. Are you currently using Kofax features such as OCR? 

ANSWER: Yes. The Districts utilize the barcode scanning and OCR features from Kofax. 
 

29. We understand that the existing FileNet system is version 3.5.2. Can you please clarify if SASD is currently 
using FileNet Records Manager v3.5, v3.5.1 or perhaps some other version? 

ANSWER: We do not have FileNet Records Manager. 
 

30. Does SASD currently have records declared on the system?   
ANSWER: No. 

 
31. If SASD does have declared records within the application, approximately how much of the 486GB have 

been declared? 
ANSWER: There are no declared records in the current FileNet system. 

 
32. Can the SASD describe their file plan/retention policies, or provide a representative sample? 

ANSWER: The Districts have a Records Management program in place with policies, procedures, 
and a file plan. The current file plan has 300 records descriptions, each description has an 
assigned Office of Record, index number, media type and related code or regulation. The 
Districts are currently revising their file plan to reduce the number of descriptions. Provided 
below is a portion of the draft revised file plan. 
 

 
Vendors have permission to use the schedules solely for the purposes of providing a bid to the Agency. The schedules are copy-right protected and cannot be 
disseminated to, or copied, or used in whole or part by third parties without GGS’s prior written permission. GGS can be contacted at (909) 337-3516. 

 

Office of 

Record

(OFR)

Retention No. Records Description 
Total 

Retention
Vital?

Media 

Options
Comments / Reference

This policy does not include all County records (records where the County is responsib le for retaining the original record for the Districts.)

Retentions begin when the act is completed, and imply a full file folder (e.g. last document + 2 years), since destruction is normally performed by file folder.                 

Litigation, complaints, claims, public records act requests, audits, and/or investigations may suspend normal retention periods (retention resumes after settlement or completion).

Board Support BS-007
Ethics Training Certificates (AB-

1234 forms) (COPIES ONLY)
5 years Paper

GC §§53235.2(b)

Board Support BS-008

FPPC Form 700 Series 

(Statement of Economic Interests):  

DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES 

(specified in the District's Conflict 

of Interest code)

7 years Paper District maintains copies of statements; GC §81009(e) & (g)

Board Support BS-009

FPPC Form 700 Series 

(Statement of Economic Interests):  

PUBLIC OFFICIALS (elected & not 

elected.  Includes District Board 

Members, General Manager)

7 years Paper District maintains originals; GC §81009(f) & (g)

Board Support BS-019

FPPC Form 635 

(Lobbyist Registration and 

Reporting)

7 years Paper
Must be posted on filers employers website for 4 years; GC §81009(e) 

& (g)

Board Support BS-020
FPPC Form 803 

(Behested Payment Report)
7 years Paper

Must be posted on filers employers website for 4 years; GC 

§81009(e)&(g)

Board Support BS-021
FPPC Form 804 

(Agency Report of New Positions)
P

Electronic 

& Paper

Must be retained same period of time as the Conflict of Interest Code, 

which is adopted by Resolution; 2 CCR 18734(c)

Board Support BS-022
FPPC Form 805 

(Agency Report of Consultants)
P

Electronic 

& Paper

Must be retained same period of time as the Conflict of Interest Code, 

which is adopted by Resolution; 2 CCR 18734(c)

Bufferlands BU-004

Environmental Reports / Mitigation 

and Monitoring Plans and Reports 

/ Biological Surveys

P
Electronic 

& Paper

Department Preference; CEQA requires a "Reasonable Period of 

Time";  14 CCR 15095(c) GC §60201
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33. How is the content being added into FileNet today and what is the SASD vision of how that content is 

added into SharePoint in the future? 
ANSWER: Users add metadata to established indices in FileNet and upload or scan the 
documents. We are looking to the vendor to provide a recommended solution for extraction of 
content from FileNet and migration to SharePoint. 

 
34. Is SharePoint simply a backend content repository or will the SASD have department and collaboration 

sites that users will contribute content?   
ANSWER: Users contribute content to both department and collaboration sites in the current 
SharePoint environment.  

 
35. Is a portal required? 

ANSWER: Yes, a separate portal is required to get directly to Records Center files. 
 

36. The objective on page 1 states “migration for File Net VP8 V3.5.2 to SharePoint Records Center and 
network file shares will be required’ How are File shares being envisioned in the requirements.  

ANSWER: Files will also need to be migrated from File Shares into SharePoint Records Center. 
 

37. Will records live on files shares as well as SharePoint and is the software expected to manage records on 
the file shares? 

ANSWER:  Our policy states that “records” will not live on File Shares, they must reside in the 
SharePoint Records Center. 

 
38. Is the SASD SharePoint environment already sized to take on the additional File Net Content? Can SASD 

provide a list of document types, counts of documents/records and data size of the content that needs to 
be migrated from FileNet to SharePoint? 

ANSWER: Yes, the current SharePoint environment can handle the FileNet file migration. Please 
see Appendix A, Technical Information table, for FileNet data size and file types. Refer to answer 
in question 9 for number of documents. 

 
39. Are you looking for a firm fixed price quote? 

ANSWER: Refer to Section 5. Basis for Compensation. The project should be quoted as Time and 
Expenses with a not-to-exceed ceiling for the entire Agreement. 

 

40. Are you looking for a 450 license option or the POC at 30 licenses to start?  
ANSWER: We’re looking for full licensure. 

 
41. Are you requiring a federated search option to search other databases and network file shares outside of 

SharePoint?  
ANSWER: A federated search is out of scope of this project. 

 
42. What type of storage system does their FileNet use for its content? (SAN, NAS, optical Jukebox)  

ANSWER: All FileNet documents are stored on the NetApp Storage device (NAS). 
 

43. Does the district already have a SharePoint taxonomy planned to store the content that will be migrated 
from FileNet or is design of that taxonomy one of the tasks for the vendor? 

ANSWER: No, the Districts do not already have a taxonomy. That should be included as part of 
implementation. 
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44. If a new taxonomy is to be designed in SharePoint, does SASD wish to replicate the FileNet taxonomy as 
much as possible?  Or would they want to consider advanced taxonomy features in SharePoint?  

ANSWER: FileNet should be considered the starting point. 
 

45. The RFP mentions that they have about 50 document classes in FileNet.  Can they provide a list showing 
the field names and data types for each of the 50 document classes? (without this we could not provide a 
fixed price quote) 

ANSWER: In our response we defined Document Class as the type of documents in our FileNet. 
Below is a list of our Search Templates, Document Types, and File Types. 
Search Templates  

 Administrative 
 Board 

 Business Planning 

 Customer Care 

 Engineering 

 Finance 

 Maintenance and Operations 

 Policy and Planning 

 Public Affairs Office 
 Wastewater Source Control 

Document Types 

 Action Summary 

 Agenda/Minutes 

 Annexation/Acquisition 

 Application 

 Board Items 

 Board Letter and Resolution 

 Bond 

 Budget 

 Change Order/Field Instruction 

 Claim/Litigation 

 Claims 

 Constituent Concern 

 Contingency Release 

 Contract/Agreement < 100,000 

 Contract/Agreement >=100,000 

 Contract-Agreement 

 Correspondence 

 Daily Sewer Fee Report 

 Deposit Permits 

 Dept. Planning 

 Drawing/Map 

 Drawing-Map-Photo 

 Financing Form 

 Fiscal 

 Form/Template 

 Grant Program Invoice 

 Graphic/Photo/Video 

 Inspection Reports 

 Insurance Certificates 
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 Invoices 

 Journal Voucher 

 List 

 Media 

 Miscellaneous 

 Ordinance 

 Original Master Files 

 Outreach 

 Pay Estimate 

 Payment Form 

 Pcard 

 Permit 

 Policy/Procedure/Manual 

 Presentation 

 Re-encumbrance Form 

 Regulatory Compliance Correspondence 

 Regulatory/Legislative 

 Report/Study 

 RFI 

 Sewer Use Questionnaire 

 Special Services Release 

 State Revolving Fund 

 Submittal 
File Types 

 JPEG 

 Microsoft Office documents 

 Outlook emails 

 PDF 

 TIFF 
 

46. What do you consider to be the top three critical success factors for this project? i.e., at the end of project 
delivery, how will we know that we’ve jointly delivered success on this project?  

ANSWER: Successful migration from FileNet into SharePoint Records Center; Taxonomy and File 
Plan in place; Content Types defined and implemented. 

 
47. What qualifications are you looking for in an implementation partner? For example, we have multiple 

Microsoft Gold and Silver Competencies, Certified Masters and MVPs, etc.; will the proposal scoring take 
our credentials into account?  

ANSWER: Yes, 10 points each are being awarded for Qualifications and Experience of Firm and 
Key Personnel / Staff Experience (see Section 10). 
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48. The implementation of software solutions can vary widely depending on project budget. Our firm has 
successfully delivered projects across various budget ranges. To help us best meet the goals of your 
solicitation, can you please approximate a budget range for this project? For example is the anticipated 
budget range:  
a. Less than $75,000  
b. $75,000 – $100,000  
c. $100,000 – $150,000  
d. $150,000 – $250,000  
e. $250,000 – $350,000  
f. $350,000 – $500,000  
g. $500,000+  

ANSWER: A budget estimate has been set.  We are not disclosing the budgeted amount. 
 

49. Do you have any Microsoft Software Assurance vouchers that might be applied to the planning phase of 
the project?  

ANSWER: No. 
 

50. We are a California Certified Small Businesses; will Certified Small Businesses receive any special 
consideration in this procurement?  

ANSWER: No. The Districts do not have a formal policy concerning small business preference. 
 

51. Will preference be given to vendors proximal to Sacramento?  
ANSWER: No. The Districts do not have a formal policy concerning local business preference. 

 
52. Do you anticipate a mix of on-site and remote project delivery? In our experience, we generally find it 

useful to be onsite during discovery meetings, installations, etc. however we can keep project expenses 
down by utilizing remote delivery for parts of the project. 

ANSWER: We expect that a mix of on-site and remote work will be scheduled.  
 

53. What is the target completion date for the entire project? 
ANSWER: We have a projected completion date, but understand that each vendor’s timeline 
will vary and are looking to the vendor to provide a preliminary timeline. 

 
54. Do you intend to use the existing Information Architecture (e.g. document types/classes, metadata fields, 

terms, record series/types, etc.) from FileNet or otherwise in the new solution? 
a. If so, will the chosen vendor be required to redevelop these IA assets in SharePoint? 

ANSWER: FileNet should be considered the starting point. Yes, the vendor will be required to 
develop the Information Architecture in SharePoint. 

 
55. Can you please provide details about your retention and disposition policies and/or provide us a copy of 

your detailed File Plan? 
For clarity sake, what we mean by File Plan is a document that lists official record info and includes: 

 Records series title and description; 
 Location and medium (e.g. paper or electronic); and 

Disposition authority (i.e. legal actions taken when records are no longer needed to conduct agency 
business. 

  ANSWER: Please refer to Question No. 32 in this document. 
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56. Regarding the management of paper-based Physical Records:  
a. What are you currently using to manage Physical Records?  

ANSWER: Physical records are not currently being “managed.” 
b. Is the management of Physical Records within the scope of this RFP? If so:  

i. Can you please provide details about the storage of Physical Records (e.g. # of locations, 
cabinets, containers, folders, documents, etc.)?  

ANSWER: The management of physical records is out of scope for this project, but we would be 
open to learning more about the capabilities of your proposed solution. 

 
57. With regard to the migration of documents and associated metadata from FileNet to SharePoint, can you 

please provide the following information:  
a. Environment:  

i. Can you please provide a diagram of FileNet including server and database names?  
ANSWER: The FileNet servers are separate entities from the SQL Server 2008 R2 Cluster 
servers.  For security purposes, no server specifics are given to outside entities. 

ii. To ascertain the degree of customization, can you please provide the database 
schema(s) for all databases utilized in FileNet?  
ANSWER: No database customizations are allowed or have been performed on the 
FileNet databases.  All tables use the dbo Schema. 

iii. Where do the documents reside (e.g. on the Windows Server file system)?  
ANSWER: Please refer to Question No. 42 in this document. 

iv. What are the specifications of the current system server hardware (i.e. RAM, CPU, Disk 
utilization)?  
ANSWER: SharePoint 2013 is a 7 server farm consisting of 3 front-end servers, 2 
applications servers, 2 database servers and 1 workflow 2013 server.  All servers are 
VMs. The specifications for each follow: 

 
Front-end X 2: 8 vCPU 32GBs RAM (Load is balanced between servers using F5 BigIP) 
Application X 2: 8 vCPU 20 GBs RAM (Search components and all other application 
services are split between these servers) 
SQL X 2:  8 vCPU 24 GBs RAM (one SQL server is dedicated to search and services, the 
other to content). 

v. Can the current server hardware be enhanced and to what extent (e.g. Can RAM be 
added to the VMs)?  
ANSWER: All servers can have vCPU and RAM added instantly with no interruption.  We 
use NetApp for storage and can expand a LUN instantly as well. 

vi. Is the existing system backed up and on what frequency/rotation?  
ANSWER: All servers, LUNs and databases are backed up hourly. 

vii. Will the chosen vendor be given remote and direct access to the application for the 
purposes of discovery, analysis and to perform the migration?  
ANSWER: Vendor will have access to site collections as needed.  No direct access will be 
given to the SharePoint Farm. The County Department of Technology (DTech) will be 
responsible for installing and testing any third party applications and will make any 
system-wide changes required.  Any access to the FileNet environment will be 
performed by the ECM SysAdmins. 
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b. Content Analysis:  
i. Can you please provide information for each of the following:  

ii. Details about any documents or metadata that are not to be migrated including how 
these can be programmatically identified  
ANSWER: Everything from FileNet will be migrated assuming a clean-up effort has 
concluded. 

iii. Approximate percentage of each document type (PDF, TIF, email, Office documents, 
CAD drawings or other large file-types, etc.)  
ANSWER: See Mime Type Statistics below: 
 

Ordered by Document Count 
  

Mime Type DocCount 

NULL 0 

application/mspowerpoint 1 

application/vnd.ms-powerpoint 1 

image/bmp 1 

application/x-filenet-external 1 

text/comma-separated-values 1 

text/richtext 1 

video/mpeg 1 

audio/mpeg 3 

image/gif 3 

application/vnd.ms-word.document.macroEnabled.12 3 

application/octet-stream 3 

application/postscript 4 

video/x-ms-wmv 4 

text/html 5 

text/plain 5 

application/vnd.openxmlformats-officedocument.spreadsheetml.sheet 5 

application/rtf 6 

application/xml 6 

image/jpeg 15 

image/vnd 18 

application/x-visio 34 

application/vnd.openxmlformats-
officedocument.wordprocessingml.document 

225 

image/tiff 565 

application/vnd.ms-excel 705 

application/msword 792 

application/vnd.ms-outlook 1952 

image/vnd.dwg 12210 

application/pdf 602204 
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iv. Details regarding any Compound Documents that reside in the existing system 
(documents that have a link embedded in the document that points to another 
document)  
ANSWER: There are currently no “FileNet Compound Documents” in the system.  We 
cannot answer/determine if the content of our documents refer to other documents or 
not. 

v. Any proprietary file formats utilized in the existing system  
ANSWER: There are no known “proprietary” file types in the FileNet system. 

vi. Estimated number of multimedia files (e.g. Pictures and/or Video) and the types of files 
(e.g. WMV)  
ANSWER: Please refer to Question No. 57.3.b in this document. 

vii. Size of the largest file(s) in the existing repository (e.g. do any exceed 2GB)?  
ANSWER: We currently do not have any files in FileNet over 2GB. 

viii. Does the existing system use folders and if so, what meaning or organization of content 
do the folders represent?  
ANSWER: There some SharePoint collaboration sites that are set up with a folder 
structure. 

ix. Any known issues with or corruption of the documents, databases or metadata  
ANSWER: There are no known issues. 

c. Conversion and Processing:  
Do you require document conversion or any other processing of documents or metadata 
during the migration, for example:  
i. Conversion to PDF/A  

ANSWER: Possibly. 
ii. Renaming of documents  

ANSWER: Possibly. 
iii. Metadata cleanup, for example:  

1. Change 2-digit year fields to 4 digit years or remediation of invalid date formats  
2. Break apart multi-valued fields into discrete columns in SharePoint  

ANSWER: Possibly. 
iv. Combining of individual document pages into a single document/file  

1. How can these related files be identified programmatically (e.g. identical name 
with page # appended)?  
ANSWER: By Project Name for example. 

2. Is the metadata the same for all pages, associated only with the first page or 
does it need to be combined from all pages?  
ANSWER: Could be both. 

d. Security:  
i. How is security handled?  

ii. Do any documents have document level security?  
ANSWER: We do not utilize document level security.  We use AD groups to control access at the 
document class level rather than individual accounts at the document level.  This way we can 
add/remove people from AD groups to make managing the system easier because we don’t have 
to worry about individual access on specific documents. 

 
e. Are annotations utilized and if so: 

ANSWER: To the best of our knowledge, annotations are not being utilized.  
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i. Are annotations applied via overlay (i.e. imposed by the existing application’s document 
viewer) or burned-in, resulting in a permanent change to the document? If so, is it your 
intention to burn these annotations on the file permanently in SharePoint?  

ii. Is there a requirement to be able to see the document without the Annotation? If so, 
would having a second copy in the un-annotated format meet this requirement?  

f. Versions:  
i. Are versions utilized and if so, are they directly accessible in the repository (e.g. not 

archived)?  
ANSWER: Yes, versions are utilized and should be accessible via the most current file 
version. 

ii. How many, if any, versions need to be migrated to SharePoint (e.g. last 3)?  
ANSWER: All prior versions must be migrated. 

iii. Does the total content size you provided in the RFP account for all versions?   
ANSWER: Yes. 
 

58. Are you interested in auto-classification product(s), which can be used to enhance the IA and significantly 
contribute to content findability, workflow, retention and disposition, etc.?  

ANSWER: Possibly. 
 

59. Is Active Directory properly configured with the fields, users, groups, permissions and roles anticipated to 
be used in the solution?  

ANSWER: To the best of our knowledge, Active Directory is properly configured. 
 

60. Is external access to the system required and if so:  
ANSWER: External access to the system is not needed. 

a. What audiences will require external access (e.g. other agencies, vendors, employees accessing 
the system remotely, the public at large) and how many users comprise each audience?  

b. Will audiences that need external access have AD accounts?  
c. Will all external audiences need to login/authenticate in order to access the system or does 

anonymous access need to be supported as well?  
d. What features of the system will external access users be permitted to use (e.g. access to 

certain documents only, all features, etc.)?  
e. Is mobile support a requirement?  

 
61. With regard to Document Capture:  

a. Is Document Capture within the scope of this procurement?  
ANSWER: Only in so far as to ensure that our existing document capture software (Kofax) will 
interface with the SharePoint Records Center. 

b. Is there a desire to leverage the existing Kofax capture software it in the new solution? 
ANSWER: Yes. 

c. Do you currently utilize any barcode printing/scanning software and if so, which ones?  
ANSWER: Yes. The Districts utilize the barcode scanning and OCR features from Kofax. 

d. How many Capture Processes do you anticipate needing for this solution?  
ANSWER: To the best of our knowledge, only one is needed to capture information from paper 
and internal electronic documents.  

e. How many of each of the following types of devices should we account for with respect to our 
price proposal:  

i. Single Workstation Scanner  
ANSWER: No Single Workstation scanners. 

ii. Multifunction Scan/Copy/Fax/Print  
ANSWER: 37 network printers. 

iii. Workgroup Scanner  
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ANSWER: Two scanning stations with batch trays. 
iv. High capacity Scanner  

ANSWER: One large format scan station. 
v. Copiers 

ANSWER: 8 multifunction copiers. 
f. Other?  

ANSWER: None. 
g. How many index-only users do you desire to procure software for?  

ANSWER: The County Department of Technology (DTech) are the only users that can create 
indices in FileNet. The number of staff who can upload and index documents is 74. This number 
varies throughout the year, no special licensing is required. 

h. Are paper documents:  
i. Always the same, well-defined, standard forms with standard data (“structured”) - OR -  

ii. Mostly similar documents with standard data that may be in different places on the 
document (“semi-structured”) - OR -  

iii. A broad array of different documents with different data on them (“unstructured”)  
ANSWER: Paper documents are a broad array of different documents with different data 
on them. 

i. What is the current scanning volume per day/week/month?  
ANSWER: It is anticipated that less than 2% of our files would be scanned into the system. 

j. Are you currently using server-based scanning products to achieve the required throughput?  
ANSWER: Kofax is used for network scanning. 

k. Do you require Bates Stamping/Numbering capability?  
ANSWER: No. 

l. Do date stamps need to be added to the physical paper of the document or just the digital 
version?  
ANSWER: Just the digital version.  
 

62. Is integration to any external applications, beyond AD, SharePoint and email, within scope for this RFP 
and if so:  

a. Can we assume that the intent is limited to explaining how the system handles integration with 
external systems?  

b. If actual integration is in scope:  
i. What systems need to be integrated to?  

ii. What level of integration is anticipated (e.g. hyperlinks only, document-level integration, 
unidirectional/read only, bidirectional data updates, functional integration)?  

iii. Can you please provide the API (web services, object interface, etc.) information as 
provided by the software vendor, as applicable?  

ANSWER: Yes, there are systems that should be able to link to files in the SharePoint Records 
Center such as Maximo and GIS. 
 

63. The RFP mentions “Workflows” ; is the development of any workflows, beyond those associated with 
records management, explicitly in scope for this procurement and if so:  

a. Can we assume the following:  
i. The workflows are very simple in nature  

ii. The workflows can be implemented using the out of the box document approval 
workflows  

iii. No custom code will be required to implement the desired workflows  
ANSWER: Those assumptions are correct. 

b. Can you please provide flow diagrams for all required workflows?  
ANSWER: Flow diagrams will not be provided at this time. 
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c. Although flow diagrams are strongly preferred, if this is not possible, can you please provide a 
table of metrics indicating the number of workflows and level of complexity (e.g. 1-5) in your 
own estimation? Complexity rankings should consider:  

i. The number of steps in the workflow  
ii. The number of participants (people or systems) involved in the workflow  
iii. If it is sequential or parallel  
iv. The source(s) of data involved in the workflow and the complexity in accessing them  
v. Any requirements for long running or cross application workflows  

vi. Any requirements for callouts to custom code  
vii. The requirements, rules and policies for the execution of the workflow  
viii. Escalation and/or remediation requirements  

ix. Requirements for administration and reporting of workflow performance  
x. Any other requirement that may contribute to the complexity of the workflow 

development, execution, or administration  
ANSWER: To the best of our knowledge, development of workflows beyond those 
associated with records management will not be necessary. 
 

64. The RFP indicates the proposal should provide a “Pilot solution with two (2) District departments as 
determined by District staff (~20-30 people total)”; to confirm, are we to limit the scope of work and any 
product licensing/pricing in our proposal to two (2) pilot departments and up to thirty (30) users?  

ANSWER: No, do not limit your proposal to just the pilot solution. 
 

65. Regarding B.04, “Does the solution address the limits of SharePoint”; what specific concerns do you have 
about these limits? Also, please note some of are changing with SharePoint 2016.  

ANSWER: The Districts expect the selected consultant to be aware of SharePoint’s inherent 
limitations and would not provide a solution that was contrary to those boundaries and 
limitations. 
 

66. Can you please provide detailed information and use cases for the following questions in Appendix A:  
a. D.01  
b. F.03  
c. F.04  
d. F.05 - What specific file formats need to be supported?  

ANSWER: We just need to know if your solution supports or not. 
 

67. With regard to post-implementation support:  
a. What is your vision in terms of a Service Level Agreement for post-project support?  

ANSWER: It was not in our vision that “post-implementation support” would be a part of this 
RFP other than software maintenance for the selected solution(s). 

b. Do you have internal resources to handle Level-1 support (e.g. training questions, hardware or 
network problems, etc.)?  
ANSWER: Yes. 

c. Should we price support into our proposal and what quantity (e.g. 40 hours per month for 6 
months)?  
ANSWER: You can make this optional. 
 

68. With regard to training:  
a. Do you desire Curriculum-Based, Classroom-Style, Training with Workbooks and Training Labs:  

ANSWER: No. 
i. How many students for Admin Curricula Based Training (5 days)?  

ii. How many students for Beginner Curricula Based Training (4 days)?  
iii. How many students for Advanced Curricula Based Training (2 days)?  
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b. Custom Training with a Microsoft Press Book and Team Sites as Labs:  
ANSWER: No. 

i. How many students for Step by Step Custom Training? (3 days)?  
c. Instructor-led Training with no Workbook or Lab  

ANSWER: Yes. 
d. Remote or Onsite Training?  

ANSWER: Yes. 
69. As an environmentally-friendly / Green company, we strive to reduce our consumption of paper; to that 

end, can respondents submit proposals electronically via email in lieu of hardcopy proposals?  
ANSWER: No. 


